DEFENDANTS SKELETON ARGUMENT

RE: RTA (Business Consultants) Limited vs Mr Defendant





BETWEEN:
RTA (Business Consultants) Limited
(Claimant)
And
Mr A Defendant

(Defendants)

SKELETON ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF
THE DEFENDANTS


1) It is Mr Defendant’s case that the Agreement that has been produced by RTA is not a binding contract between the two parties and any sums claimed by RTA are not payable because of:

Part 1 of the claim

a) The clause relied upon is penal

Therefore the first part of the claim must fail for the above reasons
Part 2 of the claim

b) Fraudulent misrepresentation
alternatively 

c) The Claimant was professionally negligent

alternatively 

d) Innocent misrepresentation 

alternatively 

e) The marketing service was misrepresented by the Claimant’s agent

alternatively 

f) Breach of Regulations

alternatively

g) The contract lacks consideration

alternatively 

h) The claimant is in breach of the Estate Agents (Redress Scheme) Order 2008
alternatively 

i) The claimant in in breach of the Estate Agents (Provision of Information) Regulations 1991
alternatively 

j) The claimant was not the effective cause of the sale

alternatively 

k) The clauses relied upon are onerous

The second part of the claim must fail for the above reasons

CASE SUMMARY

1) Mr Defendant is a Litigant in Person

2) The case is between Mr Defendant and RTA (Business Consultants) Limited which relates to an alleged breach of an agency agreement.  Copy of said agency agreement is available in the document bundle (document 2).
3) The Agency Agreement effectively requires the Claimant to do nothing whilst putting very onerous conditions on Mr Defendant.
4) This argument is tendered in response to the Particulars of Claim submitted by the claimant.  It is intended to be read in conjunction with the defence documentation.
5) Mr Defendant is the owner of a small business which employs ?? people from premises in <<<<<where?>>>>.  The Claimants are a large international corporation with offices in many countries, dealing on Standard Terms.  The parties are not of equal bargaining power.
6) The Claimants currently employ, amongst others, around 16 Fee Earners as Field Agents who visit businesses in order to value them and get the business owners signed up to a highly onerous contract.  
7) These Fee Earners are paid on a commission basis.  Each Field Agent must generate £40,000 per quarter in upfront registration fees in order to guarantee a £2,000 monthly commission (plus car, fuel and benefits).  They must also generate good Withdrawal fees for the quarter.  If they don’t they leave the employ of RTA within 3 months.  If the agent generates £60,000 in upfront fees for the quarter then he is paid a 7% retrospective bonus.  
8) It is clearly in the interest of the agent to sign up the client at all costs and make any promises he thinks will entice the client to sign the contract.  His salary, his bonus and his job are at stake.  Once the client has signed the contract, the Claimant’s internal policy means that the original Fee Earner is no longer available to the client and the client can never speak to him again.  This means that the Fee Earner will never come to personal scrutiny.
9) Mr Defendant has provided witness statements and other information showing that the Claimant’s regularly over-value businesses in order to induce the clients into signing these perpetual, fee earning contracts when they know that there is no hope of securing a sale at that valuation.  
10) The claimants advertise the business on only one website that they do not own or run, which costs just pennies per month.  
11) The unsuspecting business owner then either tires of waiting for a buyer and sells through a different agent at a much lower price, closes the business, or decides not to sell after all.  
12) At this point the Claimant then claims their commission.  
13) If the business owner decides to withdraw from the contract then the claimant may claim the commission or charge a withdrawal fee.  
14) The claimant can also withdraw from the contract at any time and claim a withdrawal fee.  
15) Once signed, there is no way out of the contract without paying a fee, regardless of how the Claimant performs.  
16) In short, the claimant does not have to sell the business or make much/any effort to do so, in order to get paid.

PART 1 OF THE CLAIM
a)  The clause relied upon is penal

17) The claimant is claiming £3,000.00 due to non payment of a lesser figure of £600.00.  

18) The breach complained of is a failure to pay a sum of money, and the result is that Mr Defendant has to pay a sum over eight times greater.  The only conclusion that can be drawn from this is that the amount claimed by RTA is a penalty rather than liquidated damages.  
Dunlop Pneumatic Tyre Co Ltd v New Garage & Motor Co Ltd [1914]:

Certain rules for the guidance of the judge have been laid down by the courts and these were usefully summarised by Lord Dunedin in the above case (Document 12).  Paragraph 4(b) notes 

“( b ) It will be held to be a penalty if the breach consists only in not paying a sum of money, and the sum stipulated is a sum greater than the sum which ought to have been paid (Kemble v. Farren(4)).”
RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Admiral Self Storage Ltd [2006] 12 CL 91:

A contractual term which provided for payment of a sales commission of £130,000 in the event of non-payment of a registration fee of £3,500 when the contract was terminated within days of inception was a penalty.  The claimants reduced the claim to £5,000 in order to use the Small Claims track but it was found that limiting the sales commission claimed did not affect the analysis of whether it was a penalty or not.

Kemble v Farren (1829) 6 Bing. 141

Farren (D) was hired by Kemble (P) to perform as a comedian at the Theater Royal. The contract contained a liquidated damages clause providing that if either party breached the agreement they would pay 1000 pounds to the other party.

Kemble brought suit alleging that Farren breached the contract in the second season. The jury awarded Kemble 750 pounds and Kemble appealed in an attempt to recover the full 1000 pounds according to the contract.

The issue dealt with in this appeal was whether liquidated damages clauses that serve as a penalty valid?

The holding was, no. A liquidated damages clause is not valid if it is a penalty clause.

The stipulation that the clause is not a penalty clause cannot be sustained by the facts.  Under the contract and from the very instance of its creation, if Kemble had neglected to make a single daily payment, or if Farren had refused to conform to any usual regulation of the theater, however minute or unimportant, the contract called for the imposition of a 1,000 pound payment. That is a penalty and despite what the parties have agreed to it cannot be enforced.
Astley v. Weldon, 2 B. & P. 346, 353

Heath, J., said: "Where articles contain covenants for the performance of several things, and then one large sum is stated at the end to be paid upon breach of performance, that must be considered as a penalty." 

The action was assumed, by the manager of Covent Garden Theatre, against an actor, to recover liquidated damages for the violation of an engagement to perform. There were several stipulations, of various degrees of importance, on each aide, 

"some sounding in uncertain damages, others relating to certain pecuniary payments; and the agreement contained a clause, that if either of the parties should neglect or refuse to fulfil the said engagement, or any part thereof, or any stipulation therein contained, such party should pay to the other the sum of £1,000, to which sum it was thereby agreed that the damages sustained by any such omission, neglect, or refusal should amount; and which sum was thereby declared by the amid parties to be liquidated and ascertained damages, and not a penalty or penal sum, or in the nature thereof." 

Notwithstanding the strong expressions used by the parties, the sum was held to be a penalty, and not liquidated damages. 

This decision has been followed in England, in Edwards v. Williams, 5 Taunt 247; Crisdee v. Bolton, 3 C. & P. 240, 243; Boys v. Ancell, 5 Bing. N. C. 390, 7 Scott, 364; Street v. Rigby, 6 Ves. 815; Beck-ham v. Drake, 8 M. & W. 846,853; Horner v. Flintoff, 9 id. 678; Galsworthy v. Strutt, 1 Exch. 659; Atkyns v Kinnier, 4 Exch. 776. 

The present state of the law in England may be gathered from the following remarks of Parke, B, in Atkyns v. Kinnier: "The rule of law, as laid down in Kemble v. Farren (which I cannot help thinking was somewhat stretched), was, that although the parties used the words 'liquidated damages' yet, when the context was looked at, it was impossible to say that they intended that the amount named should be other than a penalty, inasmuch as the agreement contained various stipulations, some of which were capable of being measured by a precise sum, and others not; as, for instance, the plaintiff was to pay the defendant a certain weekly salary, which was capable of being strictly measured, and was far below £1,000; therefore, upon a reasonable construction of the covenant, the words 'liquidated damages' were to be rejected, and the amount treated as a penalty.  That decision has since been acted upon in several cases, and I do not mean to dispute its authority.  Therefore, if a party agrees to pay £1,000, on several events, all of which are capable of accurate valuation, the sum must be construed as a penalty, and not as liquidated damages. “

Bridge v Campbell Discount Co. Ltd. [1962] AC 600

A customer bought a car under a hire purchase agreement, paid the initial and first payments and then cancelled the agreement. The company tried to recover large sums specified in the contract for cancelling the agreement, but the court decided these were excessive and constituted a penalty, making them unenforceable.
19) The first part of the claim must fail due to the above reasons.
PART 2 OF THE CLAIM

b) Fraudulent Misrepresentation

20) When the Claimant’s telesales staff originally contacted Mr Defendant they told him that they could make an appointment for one of their Field Agents to visit the business and value it.

21) Document 5a shows a page from the Claimant’s website which also shows that this service was offered.  Note that it offers a ‘free valuation’.  This page was removed on or around 31st January 2012 and replaced with document 5b.  Again, it refers to a business valuation.
22) The Claimant’s Field Agent who visited the business on the <….date of meeting….> did not appear to use any formal valuation methods and did not even look at the business accounts.  However, he spoke with confidence about the validity of the valuation and how the Claimant would be able to achieve that value in the current marketplace because they were ‘Europe’s largest Business Transfer Agent with a high success in selling businesses for over 30 years”.
23) The valuation was the main contributing factor in Mr Defendant’s decision to sell his business through the claimant.  

24) Document 6 shows 4 pages extracted from the Claimant’s Handbook which provided to Field Agents.  This Handbook was written by Mr Paul O’Reilly who is the claimant’s Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors.  I draw your attention to the highlighted paragraphs marked a) to d) which state;

a)  “Ask them if they simply want a valuation or if they want to sell”

b) “Either they will get flustered and say they only want a valuation…”

c) “..you will go through some figures with them, what sort of price can be achieved”

d) “…’how much would you be looking for if you went to the market’.  They may respond by saying ‘this is what you are here for’…”

25) Clearly, the Claimant and their Field Agent are in no doubt that Mr Defendant was offered/requested and is expecting a formal valuation

26) I now draw your attention to the paragraph marked e) which states 

27)  “..you must understand that you are not there to value…”

28) Again, clearly, although Mr Defendant was offered a valuation and the Claimant and their Field Agent acted as if they were providing a valuation, the Claimant and their Field Agent had no intention of providing a valuation.

29) In addition to this, the Field Agent was a Salesman with no experience in valuing businesses.  I draw your attention to a current advertisement of the Claimant for a Field Agent in the Norfolk area (document 7).  There is no requirement for the Claimant’s Field Agents to have skills in business valuation – even though this must be a fundamental requirement of the role.  
30) Clearly, Mr Defendant’s decision whether or not to place his business on the market hinged heavily on the price he could achieve.  He understood, from the initial discussion with the claimant’s telesales staff, that his business was being valued by the Fee Earning Field Agent.  That clearly was not the case as the claimant’s handbook states that the Fee Earner is not to value the business and the Fee Earner has no skills or training in valuing businesses in any case.  

31) Document 16 shows a business valuation from Mr Defendant’s accountant/other Business Transfer Agents.  The Claimant valued the business at £…….  In fact, it was only worth £……..

32) The Claimant’s Field Agent, in following the written instructions of his employer, either knowingly gave this false statement of fact in relation to the valuation in order to entice Mr Defendant into signing the contract, or he made this statement of fact with reckless disregard as to whether or not it was true.

33) The contract, once signed by Mr Defendant, permits the Claimant to apply various charges and fees, no matter whether or not the Claimant performs.  A fee is charged to ‘register’ with the Claimant, if either party withdraws from the contract, if Mr Defendant’s business should close or fail, if he no longer wishes to sell his business, if he sells the business himself or through a different agent.  
34) The Claimant’s Field Agent is paid a commission on the fees paid by Mr Defendant – on upfront fees, withdrawal fees and commission fees.  It is in the Field Agent’s personal interest to get Mr Defendant to sign the contract at all costs because his personal commission and job rely on it.  The Claimant also does not allow a reduction in fees if the business should sell for less than the original valuation price.  So, once Mr Defendant signed the contract, there was no way for him to re-negotiate the commission and fees after a realistic valuation, <<had he realised at the time that the valuation was wrong.>>

35) Mr Defendant was ensnared by the high valuation into a never-ending future of fee paying with no consideration on the part of the Claimant.
36) Mr Defendant, if successful in showing that the Claimant’s made fraudulent misrepresentations, would like to claim rescission of contract due to the fact that it has not been perform – partially or otherwise - and damages as detailed below;

a) Recovery of the ‘upfront’ registration fee - £…….

b) Other damages to cover <<< detail here>>> - £….

c) Interest on the ‘upfront’ registration fee at the statutory rate of 8% - £

Total £……. 

Esso Petroleum Co Ltd v Mardon [1976] EWCA Civ4

If it is the court’s opinion that the valuation was a mere opinion then please be advised of the above case.  The Claimant professed to provide a business valuation service and, in stating their 30 years experience in the industry, implied that they were experts in this field.  An apparent expert giving their opinion can be making an implied statement of fact to the effect that “I have reasonable grounds for the opinion I am giving”.

In the case of Esso v Mardon, Mr Mardon was buying a petrol station, franchised by Esso Petroleum Co Ltd.  Esso told him they had estimated that the throughput of a petrol station in Eastbank Street, Southport, would be 200,000 gallons a year.  Mr Mardon bought the petrol station and business did not go well.  From 1964, Mr Mardon negotiated a lower rent with Esso.  He still put money in but lost a lot.  Esso then brought an action for possession against Mr Mardon.  He counterclaimed for damages of Esso’s breach of warranty or negligence under Hedley Byrne.

Lord Denning MR said;

“Now I would quite agree… it was not a warranty - in this sense - that it did not guarantee that the throughput would be 200,000 gallons. But, nevertheless, it was a forecast made by a party - Esso - who had special knowledge and skill. It was the yardstick… by which they measured the worth of a filling station. They knew the facts. They knew the traffic in the town. They knew the throughput of comparable stations. They had much experience and expertise at their disposal. They were in a much better position than Mr Mardon to make a forecast. It seems to me that if such a person makes a forecast, intending that the other should act upon it - and he does act upon it, it can well be interpreted as a warranty that the forecast is sound and reliable in the sense that they made it with reasonable care and skill. It is just as if Esso said to Mr. Mardon:

“Our forecast of throughput is 200,000 gallons. You can rely upon it as being a sound forecast of what the service station should do. The rent is calculated on that footing.

If the forecast turned out to be an unsound forecast such as no person of skill or experience should have made, there is a breach of warranty.”

Lord Denning MR distinguished Bisset v Wilkinson because each party was ‘equally able to form an opinion.’ The damages awarded were for the loss suffered, not the loss of a bargain. He went on and said, if there had been no warranty (which there was) there would still be negligent misrepresentation liability in tort. It was argued that when a contract resulted, there was no tort liability, relying on Clark v Kirby-Smith, when Plowman J said a negligent solicitor was not liable in tort, only contract, based on Sir Wilfrid Greene MR in Groom v Crocker.  But these were old and the tort duty ‘is comparable to the duty of reasonable care which is owed by a master to his servant, or vice versa’.

There is a duty to negotiate with care,

“if a man, who has or professes to have special knowledge or skill, makes a representation by virtue thereof to another… with the intention of inducing him to enter into a contract with him, he is under a duty to use reasonable care to see that the representation is correct, and that the advice, information or opinion is reliable.’ Esso did profess special knowledge and had it. Their negligent misstatement was a ‘fatal error... A professional man may give advice under a contract for reward; or without a contract, in pursuance of a voluntary assumption of responsibility, gratuitously without reward. In either case he is under one and the same duty to use reasonable care: see Cassidy v Ministry of Health. In the one case it is by reason of a term implied by law. In the other, it is by reason of a duty imposed by law. For a breach of that duty, he is liable in damages; and those damages should be, and are, the same, whether he is sued in contract or in tort.”
”

Ormerod and Shaw LJJ concurred.
Peart Stevenson Associates Ltd v Brian Holland

If the claimant attempts to rely on their ‘non reliance’ clause (Clause ??  in the copy of the Agreement (document 2)), Mr Defendant would like the Judge to consider the above case.

The claimant was a franchisor who had developed a franchise model for the provision of inspection services in relation to gas and electrical appliances. The defendant had taken on the franchise in 2006 but it had failed to live up to expectations of profitability. Disputes arose between the claimant and the defendant in relation to a number of matters, including outstanding franchise fees owed by the defendant. The claimant terminated the franchise agreement, and the defendant subsequently set up a rival business within the franchise territory.

The claimant sued for damages flowing from the defendant’s alleged breaches of the franchise agreement, including alleged breach of post-termination restrictive covenants. One such covenant was a non-compete clause which prohibited the franchisee from being “engaged or interested or concerned in the supply of products and services similar to the services" provided by the franchise, within the franchise territory for a period of one year following termination of the agreement. The defendant counter-claimed for misrepresentation, alleging that, among other things, the claimant had misrepresented the average profit margin of franchisees and the failure rate of franchises.
The court found that the defendant should pay damages for the breaches which resulted in termination of the agreement. The court used the actual and projected figures of the defendant’s franchise, as supplied by the defendant, to calculate the level of the franchise fees that the claimant would have earned had the agreement continued, rejecting the claimant’s calculation based on average figures for other franchisees. On this basis, the claimant was awarded damages of £20,430.71.

The court also found that the defendant had breached the non-compete covenant, but it valued the claimant’s loss as significantly lower than the damages claimed and awarded only nominal damages of £2. This was because the court found no evidence that the breach had caused the franchisor actual damage. The court was clear: if a franchisor cannot, or will not, replace an outgoing franchisee in the territory for reasons other than the franchisee’s breach of the agreement, the franchisor’s loss will be minimal. Mere breach of a restrictive covenant following termination will not automatically give rise to damages.
Moreover, the court upheld the defendant’s counterclaim and found that the claimant had made a number of fraudulent misrepresentations which the defendant had relied upon in entering into the franchise agreement. Damages of £228,940 were awarded to the defendant (based largely on the income he lost by taking the franchise). Damages received by the defendant therefore exceeded those awarded to the claimant by £149,081.99.
Enforceability of Non-reliance Clauses

A key element in the court’s findings was its view of the effect of a non-reliance clause in the franchise agreement on the defendant’s claim that he relied on the misrepresentations when entering into the agreement. The clause stated that the defendant acknowledged that he had not relied upon any oral or written representation made to him by the franchisor or his employees and that he had made his own independent investigations into all matters relevant to the franchise business.

A further paragraph stated:

“…the franchisee hereby acknowledges… that in giving advice to and assisting the franchisee in establishing the business the franchisor bases its advice and recommendations on experience actually obtained in practice and is not making or giving any representations guarantees or warranties with regard to such matters or generally in connection with the sales volume profitability or any other aspect of the business”.
The court considered two approaches to assessing the enforceability of non-reliance clauses. The first approach concerns the fact that the clause seeks to limit or exclude the franchisor’s liability for misrepresentation, and is therefore effective only to the extent that it is reasonable, in accordance with Section 11 of the Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977. The burden is on the party seeking to rely on the non-reliance clause to show that it is reasonable. On this approach, the court held that the non-reliance clause did not meet the requirement of reasonableness.

The second approach concerns whether the clause meets the following requirements identified in the Court of Appeal case of Lowe v Lombank Ltd:
The clause is clear and unambiguous;
The franchisee understood that the clause would be acted on by the franchisor; and
The franchisor believed it to be true and was induced by this belief to act upon it.

The court found that although the clause was clear and unambiguous, the fact that the defendant had signed the franchise agreement which contained the non-reliance clause was not sufficient evidence that he meant it to be acted on by the claimant. Nor was the court satisfied that the claimant believed the statement of non-reliance to be true. Instead, the court found that the claimant knew that the defendant had relied on the misrepresentations that it had made to him at various pre-contractual meetings.

The court found that it did not need to decide which of the two approaches above was correct, because they both led to the same conclusion: that the non-reliance clause did not provide any defence to the franchisor in relation to the fraudulent misrepresentations that the court found it had made to the franchisee.

Reliance in fact

37) Mr Defendant relied wholly on the valuation provided by the Claimant.

38) Mr Defendant is not a valuer of business and has no experience in determining the market value of businesses in order for them to sell

39) This are is a specialised field that the Claimants claimed to be skilled in and they implied that they were the best at what they do.

Gahan v Boland (Supreme Court) 20/1/1984
The Bolands were the vendors of a house with around 3.5 acres of land.  Gahan, a solicitor, entered into a contract for the purchase of the property.  Boland assured Gahan that a proposed motorway connecting Dublin and Wicklow would not affect the property.  After the contract was signed, Gahan discovered that the proposed motorway did, in fact, pass through the property.
The Bolands claimed that, as a solicitor, Gahan should have been in a position to check this fact but did not do so.  They argued that Gahan was disentitled to rely on any misrepresentation.
Judge J Henchy disagreed.  He said;

“I am unable to accept this argument.  I consider it to be well-settled law that the only knowledge that will debar a purchaser from repudiating a contract he has been induced into by the vendor’s misrepresentation is actual and complete knowledge of the true situation.  It does not lie with the vendor, who has by his misrepresentation induced the purchaser to enter into a contract to purchase, to have his misrepresentation excused or overlooked and to have the purchaser deprived of a right to rescind because he did not ignore the misrepresentation and pursue matters further so as to establish the truth of what was misrepresented.  That would be unconscionable and unfair”
c) Professional Negligence

40) As noted in section “a)  Fraudulent Misrepresentation” above, the Claimant offers a free business valuation to their clients.  Either the claimant contacts the client via an unsolicited telephone call in order to make an appointment for the valuation or the client contacts the claimant via telephone or their website.  In this case, the claimant contacted Mr Defendant via an unsolicited telephone call and offered the free valuation.

41) Mr Defendant is the owner of a business which sells ?????????  He is not a valuer of businesses and has no experience of, and could not be expected to have experience of, valuing business for the open market.  
42) In the same way that he would rely on a mechanic to investigate and fix a problem with a vehicle that might be used in his business (because he has no knowledge or skills in that area), he must rely on a business valuer to advise him of the open market value of his business if he was thinking of selling it.
43) As already noted, documents 5 prove that the Claimant offered this service – to value a business.

44) However, as shown in documents 6 and 7, the Claimant had no intention of executing this service properly or at all.  

45) The claimant’s Agents have no skills or training in the valuation of businesses.  The pages from the Claimant’s Handbook for Field Agents clearly shows that, although Mr Defendant was offered a valuation, the Claimant’s Field Agent had no intention of providing it.

46) Mr Defendant was misled into thinking that the Fee Earning agent had properly valued the business at a price that was viable within the marketplace.  Instead, the Fee Earning Field Sales Agent merely placed a price on the business at which he thought Mr Defendant would be willing to sign the contract, and not one that was feasible.  
47) The Claimant had a duty of care to Mr Defendant and was negligent in their provision of the business valuation as they instructed the valuation to be undertaken by a member of their staff who was not skilled, trained or experienced in business valuation.

48) The claimants are aware that their Fee Earners are not trained or knowledgeable in valuing businesses.  They are aware that an over-inflated selling price is detrimental to the ability to secure a sale.  The claimant’s still took an upfront fee of ?????? and made claims of commission to the value of ???????? no matter whether Mr Defendant sold or not, knowing that Mr Defendant had no hope of selling his business at the price that they valued the business at.  
49) The claimant had a duty of care to Mr Defendant to value his business properly, even though it might not result in Mr Defendant signing the contract.  The Claimant’s enticed Mr Defendant into signing a contract from which he could never withdraw without paying further substantial fees.  This, Mr Defendant believes, is the sole reason for the Claimant’s incorrect valuation of his business.

50) Mr Defendant paid an ‘upfront’ fee to the Claimant as was required in the execution of the contract.  Mr Defendant has suffered a direct loss of this money – the sum of £???? – due to the negligence in wrongly valuing the business and the Claimant were unwilling to renegotiate the contract when this issue was raised with them.

51) Mr Defendant has also suffered in having not had his business on the market at a realistic price from the date at which he wanted it.  This has resulted in the delay of any sale and will result in the confusion to possible buyers when the business goes/went on the market at a realistic price.

Montlake, Yarranton, Wills (as per trustees of Wasps Football Club) V Lambert Smith Hampton Group LTD (Defendant/Part 20 Claimant) & Nicholson Graham & Jones 
The defendant surveyors gave a negligent valuation of the claimants’ rugby ground and were liable in damages for the difference between the negligent valuation and a non-negligent valuation.

The claimant trustees of a rugby club (W) claimed damages for breach of contract and negligence arising out of a 1996 valuation of the club’s ground by the defendant company of surveyors and valuations (L). Rugby Union became a professional game in 1996 and W’s assets and liabilities including the ground were transferred to a company in exchange for shares. The ground was transferred at L’s March 1996 valuation of £832,500. The shares taken by W were exchanged for shares in a plc which was floated on the Alternative Investment Market in October 1996. The prospectus for that flotation valued the ground at £5.7 million. In 1999 the ground was sold with outline planning permission for residential development for £8.9 million. W claimed that L was negligent in making the valuation because it failed to make proper planning enquiries, failed to appreciate that there were prospects of obtaining residential planning permission and so substantially undervalued the ground. W alleged that the value of the ground in 1996 was £3.42 million. L admitted negligence in certain respects but contended that the ground’s value at the relevant time was no more than about £1.5 million.

HELD: (1) The context in which L’s 1996 valuation was sought was the possible transfer of the ground as part of a process intended to enable W to raise funds for the professional era. There was nothing to suggest that L knew or was concerned about any particular transaction for which W might rely on the valuation. The valuation was expressed to be made for “the purposes of capital gains tax” but such a valuation assumed a contemplated disposal and required an open market valuation including any development prospects. It was at least a purpose of the 1996 valuation that it would enable W to decide whether, and if so at what value, to dispose of the ground and L knew or should have known that W would rely on it for that purpose. L had been negligent in representing that residential planning permission would be extraordinarily difficult to obtain without carrying out any investigation into the position when in fact the chances of planning consent were at least 50 per cent. (2) A non-negligent valuation in March 1996 would have been £3.25 million. In consequence of the law valuation W disposed of the ground for less than it was worth when it would not otherwise have done so. That loss fell fairly within the scope of the duty undertaken by L to W. There was no contributory negligence by W. The fair assessment of the loss suffered by W was the difference between L’s valuation of £832,500 and the proper valuation of £3.25 million (subject to the question whether W had to give credit for any sum because it had received a benefit for the ground in excess of L’s valuation figure). W was entitled to damages in that sum and interest from the end of 1996 which was the date by which W would have realised that sum.

Hedley Byrne & Co Ltd v Heller & Partners Ltd (1964) AC 465 
This case created the rule of "reasonable reliance" by the claimant on the skills of the defendant.
"Where a person is so placed that others could reasonably rely upon his judgment or his skill or upon his ability to make careful inquiry, and a person takes it upon himself to give information or advice to, or allows his information or advice to be passed on to, another person who, as he knows or should know, will place reliance upon it, then a duty of care will arise."

Following Caparo, the Court of Appeal in James McNaughton Papers Group Ltd. v Hicks Anderson & Co. (1991) 1 AER 134 adopted a more restricted approach, focusing in the adviser's actual and constructive knowledge of the purpose for which the statement was made. Thus, the duty was to be limited to transactions or types of transactions where the adviser knew or ought to have known that the advisee would rely on the statement in connection with that transaction without obtaining independent advice. It also had to be shown that the advisee did in fact reasonably rely on the statement without using his own judgment or obtaining independent advice. In Henderson v Merrett Syndicates Ltd. the Lords reasserted the underlying principle that liability under Hedley Byrne was a voluntary assumption of responsibility for performing the given task by a person rendering professional or quasi-professional services irrespective of whether there was a contractual relationship between the pages.
Smith v Eric S Bush [1990] UKHL 1
This is an English tort law and contract law case, heard by the House of Lords. First, it concerned the existence of a duty of care in tort for negligent misstatements, not made directly to someone relying on the statement. Second, it concerned the reasonableness of a term excluding liability under the Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977, s 2(2) and s 11.

A surveyor, Eric Bush, was employed by a building society, Abbey National, to inspect and value a 242 Silver Road, Norwich. Eric Bush disclaimed responsibility to the purchaser, Mrs Smith, who was paying a fee of £36.89 to the building society to have the valuation done. The building society had a similar clause in its mortgage agreement. The property valuation said no essential repairs were needed. This was wrong. But Mrs Smith relied on this and bought the house. Bricks from the chimney collapsed through the roof, smashing through the loft. Mrs Smith argued there was a duty of care in tort to exercise care in making statements and then that the clause excluding liability for loss or damage to property was unreasonable under 2(2) and 13(1) of UCTA 1977.

The case was joined with another appeal, Harris v Wyre Forest District Council. In this one, it was the Council that was the mortgagee. It also did the valuation. It also had a disclaimer, which was challenged by the home buyer.

For Mr and Mrs Harris Anthony Colman QC (now Colman J), Malcolm Stitcher and David Platt appeared, and for Wyre Forest District Council and Mr Lee appeared Piers Ashworth QC and Nicholas J Worsley. Mrs Smith was represented by Robert Seabrook Q.C. and Philip Havers, while Eric S. Bush was represented by Nigel Hague QC and Jane Davies.

It was held that it was not unreasonable for the purchaser of a modest house to rely on the surveyors' evaluation, as it was such common practice. In this way the court extended Hedley Byrne liability to proximate third parties.

Under UCTA 1977 an initial issue was the scope of the Act's coverage under s 13. Lord Templeman said the Act regulated ‘all exclusion notices which would in common law provide a defence to an action for negligence.’ Lord Griffiths said s.13 was ‘introducing a ‘but for’ test in relation to the notice excluding liability’, so courts should decide whether a duty of care would exist but for the exclusion. Lord Jauncey said the wording of s 13 was ‘entirely appropriate to cover a disclaimer which prevents a duty coming into existence.’

The Lords decided that even though the defendants had issued a liability waiver, this could not stand up to the test of reasonableness under s.11. 

d) Innocent Misrepresentation

52) When the Claimant’s telesales staff originally contacted Mr Defendant they told him that they could make an appointment for one of their Field Agents to visit the business and value it.

53) Document 5 shows pages from the Claimant’s website which also shows that this service was offered.  Note that it offers a ‘free valuation’.

54) The Claimant’s Field Agent who visited the business on the <….date of meeting….> did not appear to use any formal valuation methods and did not even look at the business accounts.  However, he spoke with confidence about the validity of the valuation and how the Claimant would be able to achieve that value in the current marketplace because they were ‘Europe’s largest Business Transfer Agent with a high success in selling businesses for over 30 years”.
e) Misrepresentation of the service

55) In the period of August to October 2010 RTA made unsolicited calls to Mr Defendant where they claimed to have buyers waiting to purchase their business.

56) Mr Defendant agreed to have the business valued and a meeting was arranged for 29th October 2010 where by an agent of the claimant would visit to value the business.
57) During the meeting which took place on 29th October 2010, the claimant’s agent who was instructed to undertake a valuation of the business, looked briefly around the premises and placed a valuation of £299,995 on the business. 
58) RTA’s agent stated that the business would be featured in a number of business sales publications and on Daltons website, their own website and a number of other international websites.
59) RTA’s agent stated that RTA were the largest business transfer agent in Europe, they sold the most businesses, and that they also had a database of 250,000 buyers although RTA’s own website quotes 100,000 buyers.  He said that those buyers would be mailshot with the business particulars as soon as it went on the market.
60) Despite Mr Defendant’s request on 28th March 2011, RTA did not, and have still failed, to show that any adverts were placed in any periodicals nor any websites. 
61) RTA have not shown any evidence that any business particulars were sent out to anyone.  There is no evidence of a mailshot to their 100,000 registered buyers.
62) Other than their own websites, the Claimant only advertised on one website.  This is far below that promised by the Claimant prior to the signing of the contract.

63) The Claimant did not undertake the mailshot that they promised to their 100,000 registered buyers.

64) The service which was to be provided by RTA was misrepresented by the agent.
f) Breach of Statutory Consumer Regulations
65) The agreement was signed at Mr Defendant’s place of work following an unsolicited telephone call from RTA.  At the time, Mr Defendant was the owner of <<Business Name>> which sold hot foods to it’s customers.  They were not involved in the buying and selling of businesses.  Therefore, in signing the agreement they were ‘working outside his trade or profession’ and are deemed to be consumers and so is protected by Consumer Protection Laws.  

Peter Symmons and Co v Cook (1981) 131 NLJ 758

The plaintiff firm of surveyors bought a second-hand Rolls Royce from the defendants which developed serious defects after 2,000. It was held that the firm was acting as a consumer and that to buy in the course of a business 'the buying of cars must form at the very least an integral part of the buyer's business or a necessary incidental thereto'. It was emphasised that only in those circumstances could the buyer be said to be on equal footing with his seller in terms of bargaining strength.

R and B Customs Brokers v United Dominion Trusts Ltd [1988] 1 WLR 321

The plaintiff company, which was a shipping agency, bought a car for a director to be used in business and private use. It had bought cars once or twice before. The sale was arranged by the defendant finance company. The contract excluded the implied conditions about merchantable quality. The car leaked badly.

It was held by the Court of Appeal that where a transaction was only incidental to a business activity, a degree of regularity was required before a transaction could be said to be an integral part of the business carried on and so entered into in the course of that business. Since here the car was only the second or third vehicle acquired by the plaintiffs, there was not a sufficient degree of regularity capable of establishing that the contract was anything more than part of a consumer transaction. Therefore, this was a consumer sale and the implied conditions could not be excluded.  See document 15.
RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Gill Draper [2009]

This is a County Court judgement between RTA and Mrs Draper, the owner of a Public House.  Ms Draper appointed the claimant to sell her business in November 2006.  Ms Draper had moved to Spain and flew in to England to meet with the claimant’s agent to value the business.  Mrs Draper was told by the claimant at that meeting that the Agreement was in place for 12 months and that a withdrawal fee would be payable if she terminated the agreement within that time.  In October 2007 the claimant had failed to find any prospective customers at all so she wrote to cancel the arrangement.  The claimant then claimed £20,000 in ‘lost’ commission which was subsequently reduced to £5,000 in the Small Claims action.  The Judge at the hearing at Huntingdon County Court in September 2009 found that Ms Draper was a consumer and protected by Consumer Protection laws, and that the agreement was unfair.  This was upheld at appeal at Peterborough County Court in October 2009 and the Mrs Draper was awarded costs.  Ms Draper has provided a Witness Statement with a briefing of her case in Document 10 and a transcript of the Judgement is available in document 11.
RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v David Williams [2007]

The court accepted that David Williams was not making a contract that was part and parcel of their usual business which, in the case of David Williams, was a gift and sports shop proprietor.  

RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v others [Bodmin County Court]]

Solicitor Mr John Whiting of John Whiting & Co Solicitors of 27 Westgate Street, Launceston, Cornwall, PL15 7AD defended 3 of his own clients in cases that the claimant had raised against them during the period 2006 to 2008.  In all cases, the courts found that the defendants were not making a contract that was part and parcel of their usual business and found in favour of the defendant.  In each of the 3 cases, the defendants were business owners who signed contracts on their business premises and they did not live on those premises.   

RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Neil Couzens [2011 Claim No 0NR10865] 

Mr Couzens was the owner of a Café Bar.  On 9th January 2006 Mr Couzens entered into an Agreement with RTA for the sale of his business following an unsolicited telephone call.  In 2010, following 4 years of little action on the part of RTA, Mr Couzens cancelled the Agreement.  RTA issued proceedings for a withdrawal fee.  At the hearing, the Judge agreed that Mr Couzens was deemed to be a consumer and the Agreement was unfair.  

RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Tom Alexander [2011 Claim No WW00582] 

Mr Alexander was the owner of the Cozi Bar.  He entered into an agreement with RTA in March 2007.  Although Mr Alexander was already negotiating with a third party for the sale of his business prior to signing the Agreement, and having been assured by RTA’s agent that any sale as a result of those negotiations would be outside of the Agreement, RTA brought proceedings against Mr Alexander in 2011 even though they had failed to find even one viewing.  The Judge in this case agreed that Mr Alexander was a consumer and consumer regulations required a ‘cooling off period’ which did not exist in the Agreement.

RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Clive Brown [2011 Claim No 1GL0125] 

Mr Brown was the owner of an office furniture retail operation, Zoot OFB Ltd.  He entered into an agreement with RTA in March 2006 whereby RTA agreed to market the business for 12 months and that a withdrawal fee would become payable only if the contract was terminated within that 12 month period.  RTA over-valued the business by almost double it’s actual worth which significantly contributed to its failure to sell.  In March 2010, having had no contact with RTA since 2006, Mr Brown received a letter of termination for RTA with a bill for £1175.  When he refused to pay on the basis that the contract was for 12 months, RTA issued proceedings for the sum of £5875, reduced for the small claims court.  During the dispute, RTA acted unreasonably in their correspondence on the matter.  The Judge in this matter found that the sum being claimed was a penalty and that Mr Brown, in signing the Agreement, could be deemed to be a consumer and, therefore, consumer regulations applied.  Mr Brown was awarded costs.

RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Anneliese Highton [2011 Claim No 1IQ57649] 

Ms Highton, the owner of a Guest House, signed a contract with the claimant on 21st March 2011. The claimant did not draw her attention to 13 clauses on the reverse of the page that she signed.  In fact, she was only became aware of them after the claimant had left her premises.  She contacted the claimant 2 days later to dis-instruct them and tell them how unhappy she was with this document.  The claimant sued for breach of contract for not paying a registration fee.  In a Summary Judgement hearing on 4th November 2011the Judge agreed that Ms Highton was a consumer.

66) The claimant offered a free valuation service.  This service included the valuation of Mr Defendants business in order to market it to sell quickly within 6 months (document 5 – page from the claimants website showing that the service offered is a ‘free valuation’).  The claimant’s representative who was actioned to visit Mr Defendant and value his business was not knowledgeable or trained in the valuing of businesses.  He merely used ‘super-salesman’ techniques to anticipate Mr Defendant’s need to sell, and placed a wildly inaccurate figure on the valuation in order to maximise RTA’s commission (document 6 – pages taken from the claimants ‘Salesman’s Handbook’ clearly showing that the salesman had no intention to properly value the business but was there just to get an up-front fee or a signed contract).  Mr Defendant is not a valuer of businesses and could not have been expected to know that this valuation was incorrect.  He relied on the claimant as the service provider.  Mr Defendant believes this incorrect valuation played an important part in the failure of the RTA to sell their business.  Available in the document bundle are details of other clients of the claimant’s whereby valuations were made on the basis of allowing the biggest commission for the claimant or on what the client’s expectation was and not on formal valuation methods or what would sell in the marketplace.  Document 16 shows the valuation of the business and property provided which is significantly less than RTA valued the business.

Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982

13.  Implied term about care and skill.
In a contract for the supply of a service where the supplier is acting in the course of a business, there is an implied term that the supplier will carry out the service with reasonable care and skill.
The Consumer Protection (Cancellation of Contracts Concluded away from Business Premises) Regulations 1987 (the 1987 Regs)

67) Under the 1987 Regs a consumer means, “a person, other than a body corporate, who in making a contract to which these Regulations apply, is acting for the purposes which can be regarded as outside his business.”1  <<Business Name>>’s business was selling hot takeaway foods to it’s customers.  For the purpose of the Agreement, Mr Defendant was acting outside the Business as the Agreement was one that did not form a regular part of its business activity.  As this was a contract that Mr Defendant did not regularly enter into, the parties were not on an equal footing.  RTA were at a distinct advantage as they were relying upon a pre-printed contract.

68) The visit by RTA was an unsolicited visit by a trader to the consumer’s place of work, thereby satisfying regulation 3(1)(a)(ii).  Pursuant to Regulation 3(3) an unsolicited visit includes “a visit which takes place after the trader telephones the consumer (otherwise than at his express consent) indicating expressly or by implication that he is willing to visit the consumer.”

69) Pursuant to regulation 4(1), “No contract to which these Regulations apply shall be enforceable against the consumer unless the trader has delivered to the consumer notice in writing in accordance with paragraphs (3) and (4) below indicating the right of the consumer to cancel the contract within the period of 7 days.”  This Agreement is one which these regulations apply as it does not fall into Regulation 3(2).

70) The Agreement does not contain any form of cancellation clause or cooling off period.  Pursuant to clause 6 of the Agreement the registration fee is payable immediately upon the signing of the Agreement.  The Agreement is therefore unenforceable.

The Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1999 (the 1999 Regs)

71) Under the 1999 Regs a consumer means “any natural person who, in contracts covered by these Regulations, is acting for purposes which are outside his trade, business or profession.”ii  For the reasons given above Mr Defendant can be considered consumers.

72) Pursuant to Regulation 5 and 6 it is submitted that clauses 1, 3, 7 8, 9, 11, 14, 15, are unfair terms for the following reasons:
a) The terms of the Agreement were not individually negotiated as the body of it had been pre-printed prior to Mr Defendant signing it.

b) There is no proper explanation in the Agreement of how the Selling Fees will be calculated.

c) There is no explanation as to what the ‘registration fee’ is for.

d) The Agreement does not explain the methods that RTA will use to market the property

e) The figures set out in 7, 8 and 9 are disproportionately high and therefore are terms that may be regarded as unfair. iii
f) The formal valuation was provided by RTA’s agent.  Clause 14 seeks to exonerate RTA for their agent’s incorrect valuation.

73) The Agreement as a whole is drafted in favour of RTA.  It gives the consumer very little wriggle room to terminate the agreement without incurring substantial fees.  In all the circumstances the aforementioned clauses should be declared as not binding upon Mr Defendant pursuant to regulation 8(1).

74) The contract is ambiguous and unclear.
g)  Consideration

75) The Agreement, signed on <<…date of contract…>>, lacks consideration on the part of the claimant.  The Agreement ties the client into a perpetual contract with no way out without charges or fees.  In return the claimant offers nothing and so offers no consideration.  

RTA (Business Consultants) Limited v Persia plant Ltd (+1 other) April 2010

Mr Ahari, on behalf of Perplant Ltd, signed an agreement with the claimant on 20th March 2009 after the claimant valued his business at £713k.  Mr Ahari then checked the valuation with his Bank Manager who suggested a figure closer to £250k and so he looked to cancel the agreement on 5th April 2009.  The claimant subsequently claimed £4,324 in ‘lost’ commission.  The Judge at Southampton County Court found the contract to be ambiguous and lacking in any consideration for the client.  In addition, the Judge found that the claimant’s agent had failed to properly explain the conditions of the contract and had overpriced the business.  The case was dismissed.

76) In awarding costs, the court is respectfully asked to note that the Claimant has brought these claims against Mr Defendant even though they are aware that their contracts lack consideration and are ambiguous as found by the Judge in their own case as noted above.

h)  Breach of The Estate Agents (Redress Scheme) Order 2008

77) The Estate Agents (Redress Scheme) Order 2008 requires that all persons engaged in ‘relevant estate agency work’ must be a member of an approved Redress Scheme by 1st October 2008. 
78) The Consumer, Estate Agents and Redress Act 2007 amended The Estate Agents Act 2007 and section 23C described the meaning of residential property as ‘relevant estate agency work’ as follows
(2)  “Residential property” means any land that consists of or includes a building or part of a building—
       (a)  the whole or part of which is used as a dwelling or as more than one dwelling; or
       (b)  that is (or is to be) offered for sale on the basis that the whole or part of it is suitable for such use or is intended to be so suitable by the time the seller disposes of his interest in it.
79) The Contract between Mr Defendant and RTA was for property of which part was used as a dwelling, a home for Mr Defendant’s family (Document 2)

80) The Claimant’s did not join a Redress Scheme in October 2008 and only applied to join a Scheme in July 2011 following complaints made to the Office of Fair Trading and Trading Standards

81) The Property Ombudsman is only able to help people who signed their contracts after the joining date.

82) In awarding costs, the court should note that Mr Defendant has been denied his right of redress.   
i) Breach of The Estate Agents (Provision of Information) Regulations 1991
83) S18(1), (2) and (4) of the Estate Agents Act 1991 require that RTA must provide advance written notice of fees and charges.  This refers to the 1991 Regulations no. 859 reg 3 and 4.  
84) Failure to do so makes the contract unenforceable. 
85) Until the valuation appointment on << date>>, and specifically the point at which the Agreement was to be signed, Mr Defendant was unaware of a requirement to pay an upfront fee and he remains unclear on exactly what the ‘registration fee’ was for. 

86) RTA should have made Mr Defendant aware of this requirement before the meeting or “a time before the client is committed” according to the Regulations.

87) RTA had opportunity to do this in their letter confirming the appointment, but did not.

j)  The Claimant was not the effective cause of the sale

88) The business ceased trading but the property was purchased in 2009 by a purchaser who was not introduced by RTA and were not the effective cause of the sale.
Foxtons Limited v Pelkey Bicknell & Anor [2008] EWCA Civ 419
In the Appellant court, the Judges found that, although Mr and Mrs Low had been introduced to the property by the Claimant, they had not introduced them to the actual purchase and so were not the effective cause of the sale.  Found for the Defendant
k)  Onerous Clauses

89) The alleged agreement is a single pre-printed, 2 sided sheet of paper which comes in the form of a pad of pre-printed forms.

90) Mr Defendant was only shown the front page of the form and not the reverse.  The front page shows the names of both parties with a section at the top for the name and address of the business to be sold, a blank clause 8 where additional items can be written, and a section at the bottom where the business owners must sign.

91) Various figures are entered into 3 other clauses on that front page and Mr Defendant was asked to initial each.

92) At no point did RTA’s agent draw Mr Defendant’s attention to the additional, highly onerous, 13 clauses on the rear of the form.

The “Red Hand Rule” (Spurling (J) Ltd v Bradshaw (1956) 1 WLR 461) (document 13) is a guidance whereby the more onerous the term the more it should have been brought to Mr Defendant attention.  The claimant’s agent briefly reviewed the 5 clauses that he then asked Mr Defendant to initial but he merely noted that the others were standard clauses of little importance.  



Signed:____________________ Mr Defendant



Date:   ____________________


BETWEEN:
RTA (Business Sales) Limited
(Claimant)
And
Mr A Defendant

(Defendants)
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